ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SOCI AL SERVI CES COW TTEE
February 13, 2002
1:37 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken
Senator Jerry Ward
Senat or Bettye Davis

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Loren Lenmn, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 256
"An Act relating to the certificate of need program and
providing for an effective date."”

HEARD AND HELD

PRESENTATI ON ON THE ASSESSMENT OF ALASKA' S VELFARE REFORM PROGRAM
BY SANDRA HOBACK FOR THE AMERI CAN | NSTI TUTE FOR FULL EMPLOYMENT

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
SB 256 — See Senate HESS m nutes dated 2/4/02.
W TNESS REG STER

David Pierce
CON Coor di nat or
Department of Health &
Soci al Servi ces
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about the CON program

Janet C arke
D vision of Admi nistrative Services
Department of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about the CON program

El ner Lindstrom

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 13, 2002



Deputy Conm ssi oner
Departnent of Health &
Soci al Servi ces
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about the CON program

Kat hy Cronen

North Star Behavioral Health Systens
Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 256

John Duffy

Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough

350 E. Dahlia Ave.

Pal mer, AK 00645

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 256

Charl es Franz

Sout h Peni nsul a Hospital

4300 Bartlett St.

Homer, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: COpposed to SB 256

St eve Foster

Provi dence —Kodi ak | sl and Medi cal Center
Kodi ak, AK 99615

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: QOpposed to SB 256

John Vowel
Cordova, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: The CON process needs to be changed

Dan Kelly

Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough

581 Briar Dr.

Wasilla, AK 99654

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 256

M chael Janechek

Meadow Lakes Communi ty Counci

Wasilla, AK 99687

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Al aska needs a residential treatnent
facility

Li nda Smith

Denal i Center

1293 Rangevi ew Rd.
North Pol e, AK 99705

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 13, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposed to SB 256

Davi d Hopson

Fai r banks Menorial Hospital

Fai r banks, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposes changes to the CON process

Ji m Mur phy

Good Sanmaritan Counseling Center

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports noratoriumin SB 256

John Burns, Attorney
Fai r banks, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 256

Bri an Sl ocum

Tanana Valley Cinic

Fai r banks, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 256

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-8, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAl RAMOVAN LYDA GREEN called the Senate Health, Education &
Social Services Conmittee neeting to order at 1:37 p.m Senators
Wward, Wl ken and Green were present. Chairwoman G een announced
the commttee would discuss and take testinony on SB 256 unti
2:30 and then hear a presentation by Sandy Hoback on Wl fare
Reformin Al aska. She stated that a proposed commttee substitute
on SB 256 is before the coormittee but, because the discussion on
the Certificate of Need (CON) is still generic, she did not plan
to take action on that |egislation today.

#SB 256
SB 256- CERTI FI CATE OF NEED PROGRAM

MR. DAVID PIERCE, CON Coordinator with the Departnent of Health
and Soci al Services (DHSS), gave the foll ow ng explanation of the
CON application process. An applicant first submts a letter of
intent to DHSS that contains: the nanme of the applicant; when and

where the facility will be, the estimated cost, and the estinmated
start and conpletion dates. A CONis required if the facility is
determned to be a health care facility and the project will cost
$1 mllion or nore. If the project neets the criteria,

applicants are sent a letter notifying them that they nust go
t hrough the CON process.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 13, 2002



CHAl RMOMAN GREEN asked for the definition of a health care
facility.

MR. PIERCE said a hospital, nursing hone, anbulatory surgery,
ki dney dialysis and a free standing hospital of sonme other type
nmeet the definition.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked if the nursing honme noved into that
category in 1996.

MR. PIERCE said nursing homes have always been reviewed but the
t hreshol d was changed in 1996.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN announced t he presence of Senator Davis.

MR. PIERCE explained that CON regulations require a 60-day
waiting period between receipt of the letter of intent and
receipt of the application. That gives him tine to conplete
ot her applications and prepare.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if those who are planning the facility can
expend any noney during that tine.

MR. PIERCE said they can expend up to $1 million in the planning
process but cannot cross the $1 million threshold.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN asked if that applies before they cone to him

MR. PIERCE said it does because the only trigger is a $1 mllion
t hreshol d.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked M. Pierce what is done with the letter of
i ntent.

MR. PIERCE said it is a one or two page docunent. He has 20 days
to review it but he can usually make a determination in tw or
three days. If the project is a health care facility and wll
cost over $1 mllion, he sends a letter saying a CON wll be
required.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if he speaks with anyone other than the
applicant at that point.

MR. PIERCE said he does not. He explained that if a CON is
requi red, he sends an application packet and offers the applicant
a pre-application conference so that he can explain the process.
He reconmends to all applicants that they send in the letter of

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 13, 2002



intent early as it can be submtted up to one year early. Once
the CON is submtted, he has 20 days to review it. If it is
decl ared conplete, he has 90 days to finish the review.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if the information on the CON application
is confidential.

MR. PIERCE said it is public know edge. The review is announced
i n newspapers and published on the DHSS web page.

CHAI RWOVAN CGREEN asked M. Pierce to direct her to the statutes
t hat govern the process.

1:45 p. m
MR PIERCE cited AS 18.07.010 - .111 but explained that the
regul ations are nore specific to the application process. He

reviewed the regul ations as foll ows:
e 7 AAC 07.030 refers to the letter of intent;

e 7 AAC 07.040 says the application nust be submtted in
writing.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked how the applicant knows what is required
in the subm ssion.

MR. PIERCE said the information is in the application packet.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN read, “An applicant shall submt four copies of
the application to the state agency and two copies to the
appropriate health systens agency,” and asked what the health
systens agency woul d be.

MR. PIERCE replied, “The health systens agencies? They are
agencies that no |l onger exist. They were phased out in ’98.”

CHAl RAMOVAN CGREEN asked how an applicant would know that the
regul ati ons have not been corrected.

MR. PIERCE said that is the purpose of the pre-application
conf erence.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN asked if the only way to correct the text is to
anmend the regul ati ons.

MR. PIERCE said that is correct and that legislative authority is
not required.

CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN asked if the applicant nmust send a copy to the

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 13, 2002



Al aska State Library.
MR. PI ERCE said he actually does that for the applicant.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked if the applicant is still required to
submt four copies.

MR. PIERCE said he often gets requests for nore than four copies
from people who are in interested in the project.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if an applicant could be required to share
proprietary information about future plans with the public.

MR. PIERCE said whatever is submtted to himis available to the
public.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if that is the point at which soneone
coul d request a copy of the application and express opposition to
t he project.

MR, PIERCE said it is not. DHSS has a set tinme period during
whi ch public coments are accepted. As soon as the application
is declared conplete, he is required by regulation to send a
notice to one statew de newspaper and a |ocal newspaper. The
notice contains a public coment period, which starts shortly
after the application is declared conplete and runs for 30 days.

MR. PIERCE explained that he has 90 days to review the
application and a 30-day extension is allowed if necessary. The
review and reconmendations are then sent to the comm ssioner’s
of fice. The commissioner’s decision is published in two
newspapers and the applicant and other interested parties are
notified, along with the right to appeal the decision.

CHAl RMOVAN  GREEN asked about the tinmefrane in which the
conmmi ssi oner oper at es.

MR. PIERCE said in his experience, the comm ssioner tries to nake
the decision within a few weeks but has no set tinme limt.

CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN asked M. Pierce to describe the tinefranme of
the ideal application process.

MR. PIERCE said the entire process has been conpleted in 45 days.
He explained that one area of the process that is problematic
occurs when applications are inconplete and the applicant does
not respond until the end of the submttal period (60 days). If
the applicant sends back information that is still inconplete,

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 13, 2002



the 60-day submttal period begins again. He has seen
circunstances in which it has taken applicants 180 days to submt
all information. He stated that when applicants submt a letter
of intent early, the 60-day waiting period from receipt of the
letter of intent to the application period does not create a
del ay.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked what the expedited review applies to.

MR. PIERCE said it applies to nodifications to the CON, which
occur during construction when cost overruns occur or plans have
to be nodified.

MR. PIERCE said during the 60-day public comment period, he is
required to hold a public neeting in the community where the
project is located if a nmeeting is requested.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN asked why an applicant would request a public
meet i ng.

MR. Pl ERCE expl ained that a neeting can be requested by DHSS, the
applicant, or a nenber of the public. He noted the applicant may
want to pronote the project to |ocal people. Soneti mes severa
applicants are applying for simlar projects and they want to
show the public how their project stacks up agai nst others.

CHAIRWOVAN GREEN indicated there can be conpeting CON
applications. She asked M. Pierce to describe his job.

MR. PIERCE said his job is to outline the process in |aw and
regul ation and to neet the deadlines. He stated that he has co-
workers but he is primarily responsible for this program He
processes between three and 10 applications per year. About 60
percent of his activities include dealing with letters of intent
that do not require CONs.

2:00 p.m

SENATOR W LKEN asked M. Pierce if he nmkes an actual
recomendati on to the Conm ssi oner.

MR. Pl ERCE said he makes findings and reconmendati ons.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked for a description of +the evaluation
process and whether applicants are given that information in
advance.

MR. PIERCE explained that the criteria for review are contained

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 1- February 13, 2002



in the application packet. He noted that the first criterion

“(1) the relationship of the health services being reviewed to
the applicable health systens plan” is quite inportant. He
expl ained that there is no current State of Al aska health systens
pl an but he does | ook at the plans of other agencies, such as the
Di vision of Senior Services and the Division of Mental Health and
any | ocal plans.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked for clarification of an applicable health
system pl an.

MR. PIERCE said the applicable plan for a CON application for
psychiatric beds would be the nmental health plan; for nursing
hone plans, DHSS would | ook at the Division of Senior Services

pl an. He noted DHSS does not have plans for every area so
sonetinmes it |ooks at the applicant’s | ong-range plan.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked how that criterion ties to the statute or
regul ati ons.

MR. PIERCE said that criterion has been in the application as
| ong as he has been with the program which is nine years.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN noted the CON program has undergone nmajor
changes since its inception. At one tinme it had several
enpl oyees. She asked how the federal appeal inpacted the state’s
CON program

MR. PIERCE replied that an annual health fiscal plan used to be
publ i shed until the federal noney went away.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if the application packet could contain
references to activities that no | onger occur or are required.

MR. PIERCE said that is correct, i.e., any reference to a health
systens agency in the regulations is no | onger applicable.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN asked if it is possible that an applicant would
not know t hat.

MR. PIERCE answered that is the reason for the pre-application
conf erence.

CHAl RNWNOMAN GREEN asked if a conference is held so that M. Pierce
can tell the applicant what in the packet can be ignored.

MR. PIERCE replied there is not a lot in the book to ignore.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 13, 2002



CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if any HMOs exist in Al aska.

MR PIERCE said no and that is sonmething he would tell an
applicant to ignore.

SENATOR WLKEN asked if a conponent of M. Pierce’s
recommendation to the commssioner is a fiscal analysis of the
proj ect on the state budget.

MR. PIERCE said he tries to estimate what it will cost but the
deci sion for acute care cannot be based on that infornation.

SENATOR WLKEN referred to item 5 in the “Certificate of Need
Review Criteria,” which reads,

(5) The immediate and |long-term financial feasibility
of the proposal, as well as the probable inpact of the
proposal on the costs of and charges for providing
health services by the person proposing the new
institutional health services.

He asked M. Pierce what (5) neans in his recomendation to the
Conmi ssi oner vis-a-vis the state budget.

MR. PIERCE replied that if the applicant does not have a plan to
find financial funding for the project, he would note that but it
woul d not be a factor in denying the project because of the way
the statute is witten for acute care. It can be a factor for
denial for long termcare wwth the new law. He referred nenbers
to AS 18.07.041 and .043 for the standards he can use.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN mai ntai ned that .041 pertains to need.

MR. PIERCE agreed and said that .043 includes costs and pertains
to nursing home costs.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if (5) speaks to whether or not the
appl i cant has obtained financial backing for the construction of
the project — not to whether the applicant will nake a profit.

MR PIERCE said that is correct.

SENATOR W LKEN said he is struggling with the fact that a private
business is willing to ganble, for exanple, $5 nmllion to build a
facility but by law, that business nust get perm ssion fromthe
state. He namintained that the purpose of DHSS is not to | ook at
that conpany’ s business plan because it is the business’s risk

talent and noney that wll determne whether it wll be

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 13, 2002



successful . He then asked, if it is DHSS s purpose to protect
the public interest and the public nonies involved, the question
shoul d be what is the inpact on the people’ s noney — the general
fund. However, it does not sound |ike DHSS does that. He noted
it sounds like M. Pierce organizes, distills, and nakes a
reconmendati on but that process has nothing to do with validating
the inpact on the state budget.

MR. PIERCE said his hands are tied because he is prohibited from
doi ng so by | aw

M5. JANET CLARKE, Director of Admnistrative Services, DHSS
clarified that as part of the application review, M. Pierce
provides information to the comm ssioner on the inpact on the
Medi cai d budget. To determ ne the inpact on the Medicaid budget,
the information on cost is considered from the perspective that
Medicaid clients nay conprom se 20 percent of their business.
For long-term care, the Medicaid anobunt may be 90 percent. That
information is provided to the conmm ssioner even though the
overriding determnation criteria for a CON is whether a need
exi sts.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN stated that M. Carke's response does not
conport with information received from DHSS at the |ast neeting.

SENATOR W LKEN asked, in the case of the Fairbanks application
the recommendation to the conm ssioner would have included the
i npact to the general fund.

MS. CLARKE said that is correct. She stated it is a little nore
conplex than that but that the review denonstrated there was no
need for additional beds.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN asked what regulation contains the authority to
use cost in the recommendation to the conm ssioner.

V5. CLARKE replied,

Senator Green, | hope | didn't confuse you. Cost
cannot be a factor in the determnation of whether a
Certificate of Need will be granted. But |I'mjust — |
wanted to clarify that we do provide that information
because everyone is interested if the Medicaid budget
is going to go up because of Certificate of Need. It
cannot be wused as a determnation of whether a
Certificate of Need is granted.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN repeated that explanation is very inconsistent

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- February 13, 2002



with a previous explanation given by DHSS.

MR.  ELMER LINDSTROM Deputy Conmm ssioner of DHSS, said he
recalled the confusion on this point when he testified at the
| ast hearing. He said he would try to explain again and stated:

If you're the conmmssioner of Health and Social
Servi ces, you are responsible for the entire agency and
in that agency is a variety of divisions, including the
Di vision of Medical Assistance. Wen you are naking a
deci sion about the Certificate of Need, it does not
allow you to base your decision on the inpact to the
Medi cai d budget or to the departnent. However, you are
t he conm ssioner of the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces, you oversee the Division of Medi cal
Assistance and you certainly want to know that
information and see it in front of you. Perhaps it is
not a satisfactory explanation but that’s the reality
of the comm ssioner wearing these multiple hats and
circunstance and, not infrequently, the |egislature,
too, is very much interested in what new facilities are
comng on line - is there any cost in that and so
forth? So, the information is provided but, again, the
statute does not allow for the determination on the
granting or not granting of the Certificate of Need to
be made on the basis of that information, although the
information is there.

SENATOR W LKEN asked, referring to the Fairbanks exanple, if the
private firmis willing to ganble its resources and the state
doesn’t really care about the inpact on the budget, why a CON is
needed if the private firm has established de facto a need? He
repeated that he is struggling with the question of why DHSS does
not care about the state budget.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER LI NDSTROM i ndicated that the draft conmttee
substitute contains |anguage that is an effort to put explicitly
in statute that cost to the budget be considered when review ng
an acute care Certificate of Need. DHSS supports that |anguage.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked how an applicant would know that is a
factor if it is not listed in the criteria. She expressed
frustration that DHSS has not recomended that this program be
reviewed and cleaned up and that the conmttee has had to
initiate action. She asked how nmuch of the other information
provided to applicants in the application packet is inappropriate
and i napplicable, and what the applicant should consider that is
not included in the packet.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- February 13, 2002



2:20 p.m

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER LI NDSTROM r esponded t hat proposed regul ati ons
that would clean up a lot of the outdated |anguage were out for
public comrent |ast spring. Those regulations have not yet been
adopted by the comm ssioner due to the fact that DHSS has a one-
person CON program and those regulations are also his
responsibility. He commented that he is not proud of the fact
that the regul ati ons are out-of -date.

SENATOR W LKEN said it would be helpful to see an exanple of a
page that suggests to the conm ssioner the range of inpact on the
stat e budget.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER LI NDSTROM agreed to provide that.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN stated that she finds it very unsatisfactory
that the applicant may not be told about the requirenments in the
application packet that are not I|onger applicable or that an
applicant may not know to ask and do a |l ot of extra work.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER LI NDSTROM said as a practical matter, the
pre-conference tends to satisfy nost of those concerns.

MR. Pl ERCE added that he also neets with any hospital or facility
admnistrator interested in the process for the purpose of
provi di ng educati on.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked for a side-by-side conparison of the
requirenents in state |law and/or regul ations and what M. Pierce
does.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER LI NDSTROM asked if she is looking for an
analysis of how the criteria are derived from the statute and
regul ati ons.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN said she wants to find out how an application is
eval uated and whether a point systemis used. She said she does
not wunderstand how a conpleted application gets approved or
di sapproved and what questions are asked. She stated:

Are those questions that the board of a large nmulti-
mllion corporation have already asked thenselves and
determ ned and the Washi ngton nethodol ogy - how does
that equate to what happens in Al aska? Wwere is the
line item and the answer, the position and the answer
and how it’'s evaluated or deval uated? So that - |

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- February 13, 2002



think that there are those who want to know that this
is a fair systemand if we’'re going to have it that
it’s thorough but that it’s fair and that people know
going in — 1 nmean it’s like anything else you do on an
application - you go get your packet, you get your
instruction booklet and you don't say, oh, but you
ignore line 3, line 7 and you don’t have to worry about
page 2. That doesn’'t nmke sense.

TAPE 02-8, SIDE B

SENATOR DAVI S commented that she does not believe the businesses
that were denied a CON are present because they believe the
regulations are faulty; they are here because they were denied
the certificate they need to go forward. She asked if it is the
purpose of the CON coordinator to establish whether the need for
another facility exists.

MR. Pl ERCE said that is what he does.

SENATOR DAVIS asked M. Pierce to provide her with the exact
information and process he uses when an application is denied.
She noted when an application is denied, the process is cut off
because no need has been found. The private firm can cone back
within the confines of the $1 nmillion figure, it can drop the
project or it can continue to test the water to find out if there
truly is a need.

MR. PIERCE said that is correct. He explained the applicant can
resubmt an application at any tinme and an appeal process is
avai | abl e.

SENATOR DAVIS said that M. Pierce is the person who determ nes
whet her the application can go forward because a need exists and,
if so, it is the comm ssioner who deci des whether to grant a CON.
She asked M. Pierce to describe how he determ nes how the need
exists and to provide the conmttee with information on how many
appl i cants have appeal ed and why.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER LI NDSTROM stated that in the case that
menbers are famliar with, the applicant did appeal but wthdrew
it so a hearing officer never made a determ nati on.

SENATOR DAVI S asked about the track record of appeals.

MR. PIERCE said three or four decisions were appeal ed over the
| ast ni ne years.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- February 13, 2002



CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked for the record of the applications,
appeals and final decisions and noted that the review process
nmust be clarified otherwise it can change fromone application to
the next. She then took public testinony.

2:29 p.m

M5. KATHY CRONEN, CEO of North Star Behavioral Health System
stated support for SB 256, regarding the noratorium on
psychiatric beds. She inforned nenbers that she recently
testified in support of SCR 21, which would bring hone the 400
children currently in residential treatnent centers outside of
Al aska. SCR 21 passed the Senate wth unaninous support:
testinmony on the Senate floor enphasized the need to exam ne the
entire problemof in-state care and that this needs to be a ngjor
project — admnistratively, legislatively, programmatically, with
a focus on the budget inpact. SB 256 provides the two critica
el emrents needed in order to reach the goal articulated by the

Senate to bring these children home for treatnent. First, it
provi des an avenue for adequate planning. Second, it provides
the statutory | anguage necessary to consider the fiscal inpact of
adding nore psychiatric beds. The noratorium on in-patient
psychiatric beds wll provide a period of tinme for DHSS and

others to examne the existing continuum of nmental health
services — both inpatient, outpatient, comunity based services,
foster care and residential care. SB 256 is simlar to
| egi slation enacted in 1996, which created a noratorium on new
nursing honme beds and established a work group to study the | ong-
term care problem The reconmendations made by the workgroup
were adopted and changed the way DHSS revi ewed and approved new
nursing hones beds: DHSS was allowed to consider the fiscal

I npact .

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN noted the language in the draft commttee
substitute is very simlar to the 1996 |egislation.

M5. CRONEN continued. SB 256 provides a brief period of tinme for
a work group to analyze whether nore inpatient psychiatric beds
are needed in Al aska. It is her belief that the state does not
need nore acute care beds. It needs nore |long-term residential
treatment beds to take care of those children who are being
treated outside of Al aska. She stated her belief is based on
both the clinical needs of the patients and the fiscal inpact to
the state. The fiscal inpact of adding nore inpatient psychiatric
beds is staggering and nekes no sense as it is nmuch nore
intensive and costly than residential treatnent. She pointed out
that Medi caid pays for 85 percent of inpatient psychiatric stays.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- February 13, 2002



The cost of inpatient psychiatric care ranges from $562 per day
at North Star Hospital to $1,584 at other facilities. The cost
of residential treatnment is $325 per day. She noted the draft CS
before the committee does not inpact the replacenent beds at
Al aska Psychiatric Institute (API).

The commttee took a brief at-ease.
CHAI RWOVAN GREEN t ook tel econference testinony.

MR, JOHN DUFFY, WMat-Su Borough manager, stated support of the
commttee’'s effort to |ook at the CON process and support of SB
256, which places a tenporary noratoriumon psychiatric beds. He
suggested that a noratorium is necessary to facilitate
di scussion, better planning, nore appropriate patient placenent,
addi ti onal pl acenent choice and encourage |less intensive
residential treatnment. He also supports consideration of the
fiscal inpact in the CON process.

MR. CHARLES FRANZ st ated opposition to the proposed CS to SB 256.
Rai sing the CON threshold to $10 nmillion effectively guts the CON
process. Regarding Senator W I ken s question about why a private
firmthat is willing to ganble its noney should not be allowed to
go forward, he responded that under the current CON process, a
private firm in nost cases, wuld not be considered to be a
health care facility and would not be required to have a CON
Those in the health care business need a |evel playing field.
DHSS nust make sure that Al aska has a sustainable health care
infrastructure in small comunities around the state. He
believes the CON process is very inportant, just as the limted
entry permt system is for the fishing industry in order to
maintain the resource and infrastructure. The CON process
ensures that rapid overbuilding does not occur and that unneeded
services are not created. He maintained that the current CON
process could be significantly inproved by clearly defining the
eval uation criteria.

2:47 p.m

MR. STEVE FOSTER, Fi nancial Services Adm nistrator at Providence-
Kodi ak Island Medical Center, stated opposition to SB 256.
Increasing the threshold to $10 nmillion would have an adverse
inpact on a comrunity such as Kodiak where an outside entity
could conme in and build a small facility for that amount. Al so,
health care providers are experiencing a staffing shortage.
Finally, SB 256 could also increase the state’s health care
budget. He agreed that sone type of change should be nmade to the
CON process but that change should be done to |evel the playing

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 15- February 13, 2002



field.

MR. JOHN VONEL (ph) of Cordova stated that nobst of his concerns
have been addressed in previous testinony. He believes the CON
process is what needs to be changed. The existing process
contains a lot of room for arbitrary decisions that can be nade.
The only opportunity to address arbitrary decisions is through

the appeal process, which is costly and tine consum ng. He
expressed concern about the Jlack of a process once a
reconmendation is sent to the commssioner’s office. He

commented that conpetition can have an adversarial effect on
operations in small comunities.

MR. DAN KELLY, Mat-Su Borough, infornmed nenbers the Borough woul d
like to have a residential treatnment center located within it.
The Borough’s popul ation has increased 3.5 percent per annum -—
the fastest increase in the state. The Borough would like to
i nprove psychiatric care for its growng nunber of residents

Recogni zing the inportance of a CON wth a limted anount of
state Medicaid dollars, the actions taken by the legislature are
likely to have a direct bearing on the nunber of children that
can be treated and where. The Borough believes the state should
review the nental health system in total. It believes that a
noratorium on the addition of psychiatric beds will facilitate
actions to provide a nore balanced system of care, Dbetter
pl acenent of <children and avoid acute inpatient costs. The
Borough believes the $10 mllion threshold is a reasonable cap
for the CON program since the $1 nmillion threshold was set 19
years ago. He stated support for SB 256.

MR. M CHAEL JANECEK, Meadow Lakes Community Council President,

stated support for SB 256. Meadow Lakes residents are very
supportive of the residential youth psychiatric care facility,
currently planned and negoti at ed. Keeping youth within Al aska

woul d benefit treatnent by enabling famly nenbers to be nearby.
Medical treatnment in Alaska would also save considerable funds
and generate econom c devel opnment. |If an inbal ance between acute
care and other psychiatric care exists, the Meadow Lakes
Community Council would support a noratoriumon the establishnent
of acute care beds.

M5. LINDA SMTH, a registered nurse and assistant adm nistrator
for the Denali Center in Fairbanks, stated opposition to SB 256,
in particular to the threshold increase to $10 million. SB 256
woul d seriously inpact the ability of Fairbanks Menorial Hospital
to nmeet its mssion, which is to provide health care to all

regardl ess of ability to pay. The hospital has worked hard to
provi de services in the community that do not pay for thensel ves.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 16- February 13, 2002



Increasing the threshold to $10 million will allow a few, for-
profit entrepreneurial businesses to provide services and take
away the hospital’s “bread and butter.”

MR. DAVI D HOPSON, senior financial analyst at Fairbanks Menori al
Hospital, stated opposition to SB 256 based on the prem se that
the CON program worKks. He stated the existing threshold of $1
mllion keeps redundant facilities out of a |ocation, it does not
stop conpetition. He stated, regarding a new anbul at ory-surgi
center in Fairbanks, Fairbanks has plenty of capacity already. He
pointed out that Medicaid only pays Fairbanks Menorial Hospital
55 cents on the dollar.

MR JIM MJRPHY, Executive Director of the Good Samaritan
Counseling Center, testified in support of the noratoriumin SB
256. Good Samaritan is the largest outpatient counseling
practice in Alaska; it serves several hundred clients per week.
He expressed concern about the future of nental health care in
Al aska. Al reports he has read indicate that Al aska is facing a
serious financial shortage, therefore it is only reasonable to
carefully evaluate and plan the best nental health services for
resi dents. He is quite disturbed that DHSS is presently
considering a CON for additional acute psychiatric care beds. An
additional 30 beds will cost the state $16 nmllion of Medicaid
funds. He questioned how the general fund can absorb that cost.
He is further concerned with how that expense wll inpact
Al aska’s financial ability to serve clients with other services.

2:58 p.m

MR JOHN BURNS informed nenbers that he is an attorney from
Fai r banks who represented the Tanana Valley Cinic during the CON
appeal process. He stated there is no question that the CON
process is flawed. Applicants have little criteria to follow
regarding what is or is not included in the nethodol ogy by which
the criteria are eval uated. Need is based on surgical mnutes
but there is no definition of what is involved in a surgery. He
expl ained that, all things being equal, the sanme hernia procedure
is counted if done in a surgery room but not counted if it is
done in a procedure room He stated the absurdity of that kind
of anal ysis when determ ning need is obvious. He maintained that
the law as currently exists is repressive, pronotes inefficiency
and is in no way ained at pronoting quality health care. The
national trend, as recognized and admtted to by M. Pierce, the
CON coordinator, is toward outpatient centers for the follow ng
reasons: patient choice, patient access, and patient cost.
Anbul at or y- sur gi care has provided a 20 percent savings
nati onw de.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- February 13, 2002



MR. BURNS said that DHSS has said a |ot about the potential
inpact on the state via Medicaid if the CON is abolished or
nodi fi ed. He contended that argunent is in |arge neasure snoke
in mrrors, particularly from the standpoint of a private
provi der. The sinple economics are that no one will go into a
market at $5 or $10 mllion wthout doing a serious narket
analysis. And, if they can’'t support it, that is their problem
To focus on Medicaid costs also ignores the savings to the

private payers — Blue Cross, Blue Shield, etc. The nationw de
trend that shows a 20 percent savings refers to real dollars,
including savings to the State of Alaska on its enpl oyees. He
said it is easy to say that opening up conpetition will have a
negative i npact. He asserted the national data shows that
communi ties that have elim nated the CON have not shown increased
expenses. The CON process is an exanple of inefficient,

counterproductive regulations and, in a tinme when governnment is
seeking to run nore efficiently, it should be nodified to at
| east raise the threshold. He stated support for SB 256.

MR. BRIAN SLOCUM Admnistrator of the Tanana Valley dinic,
comment ed about the issue of services that subsidize noney-1|osing
services at existing hospitals. He cited a report entitled, The
Effects of Certificate of Need and Its Possible Repeal, done for
the State of Washington in 1999 by its Joint Legislative Audit
and Review Conmittee, and read:

Proponents of CON argue that it provides financial
stability to existing providers, allowing them to
extend access to populations that are expensive to
serve. While the argunments regarding such cost
shifting seem pl ausi bl e, no studi es have been conpl et ed
to show that CON or its absence has a direct effect on
the ability of facilities to cross subsidize expensive
or unreinbursed care...W found no studies that
directly link CON with higher |levels of charity care.

MR, SLOCUM said that as a person who has been through the CON
process in recent years, he would not be before the commttee if
the I aw was applied evenly and fairly. The process was confusing,
anbi guous and di sorgani zed. He was given contradictory
instructions and the rules changed on nultiple occasions. Sonme
of the instructions given had to be ignored. He followed other
instructions believing the application would be judged on them
but they were not. He was unaware that one of the itens that
woul d be judged was the profitability of another applicant for
the sane CON. Nor was he aware that the utilization neasures to
determ ne need would change throughout the process or that the
definition of surgical services was being changed and differed

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- February 13, 2002



from the federally-nmandated definition. Because there were no
rules or standards, he had no way to challenge the process when
it seened to go awy. M. Slocum said that 30 years of academ c
research suggests that CON progranms do not reduce cost and, in
fact, in many cases increases costs. It also erects barriers to
entry for new and nore efficient providers of care. He
reconmended opening up health care to the forces of conpetition.

SENATOR DAVI S asked M. Slocumfor a copy of that report.

SENATOR WARD asked that the commttee find out if an audit has
ever been done by the Division of Legislative Budget and Audit on
Al aska’ s CON program

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN agreed to do so and then announced that the
hearing on SB 256 would termnate for the day. She asked Sandy
Hoback to present the Anmerican Institute for Full Enploynent
report.

#

The commttee took a brief recess.

AMERI CAN | NSTI TUTE FOR FULL EMPLOYMENT REPORT

#SB 293

MS5. SANDY HOBACK, an independent consultant under contract wth
the American Institute for Full Enploynent, infornmed conmttee
menbers that the Institute is a non-profit research and education
institute whose mission is to pronote full enploynent and
uni versal access to jobs with career potential for all who can
wor K, especially those receiving public assistance as a
substitute for opportunities and rewards for paid work. The
Institute offers to assess state welfare reformefforts. In that
vain, she visited Alaska last spring and nade that offer to
Chai rwonman Green and Chairman Dyson. They requested the Institute
do an assessnent, which was conpl eted | ast COctober.

M5. HOBACK said she would talk specifically about the |egislative
reconmendati ons made in that report. She pointed out the D vision
of Public Assistance has contracted wth her independently to
operationalize many of the other recomendations. She listed the
five recommendati ons as:

Recomrendation 1

* Amrend the statute to allow Alaska to use full flexibility
al l oned under federal law to extend benefits to some |ong-
termrecipients.

M5. HOBACK said the | egislature discussed this issue | ast session
but the conmttee felt further analysis was necessary before
maki ng that statutory change. She recommends that change be nade
and allowing the Division of Public Assistance to craft narrow

SENATE HES COW TTEE -19- February 13, 2002



criteria by which to determ ne whether a famly can extend beyond
the 5-year time limt. She noted a famly m ght reach the 5-year
time limt yet have several justifiable reasons for an extension.
She maintained that using criteria instead of an artificial cap
| evel is a better way to go.

Recommendati on 2

* Mve toward a progressive sanction system for uncooperative
clients.

M5. HOBACK expl ained that Al aska currently inposes a cash grant
reduction to the famly of about 40 percent for the first tine it
does not cooperate with i medi ate restorati on upon cooperation; a
mandatory six nonth penalty for a second offense; and a 12 nonth
penalty for a third offense. She noted that systemis a great
di sincentive to cooperation because even if the adult decides to
start cooperating, he or she mght still have a 6 or 12-nonth
penalty. Also, while disqualified, the famly' s time clock
continues to tick. She suggested using a system that progresses
t hrough a nunber of stages but can ultinmately close a cash grant
if people continue to be uncooperative. Such a system is nore
famly-friendly for two reasons: it can be cured i nmediately upon
cooperation and the time clock stops when the grant is closed.
She noted that adding appropriate safeguards for the well-being
of the children wll create a better check and bal ance system
than using the artificial cap with the existing sanction policy.

Recommendati on 3

e Create an approach whereby full-time working clients, under
a certain incone level, continue to be eligible for sone
ATAP benefits even though they have reached the five-year
limt.

M5. HOBACK stated that is addressed in the legislation [SB 293]
under a self-sufficiency services provision. It would allow the
state to continue to serve working clients and provide themwth
appropriate support to stay on the job.

Recomendat i on 4
e Strengthen Al aska’s upfront diversion program

M5. HOBACK explained that an upfront diversion program is a
nmechani sm whereby the client is found enploynent so that he or
she does not have to cone on the assistance program The current
statute allows two nonths of benefits to be paid to the
i ndi vidual upfront, instead of opening a <cash grant. The
Institute recommends that be increased to three nonths of
benefits because two nonths is often not enough given the cost of
living in Alaska. She pointed out that recomrendati on dovetails
with other nanagenent recomendations she has nade to the

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 20- February 13, 2002



division to strengthen the entire wupfront approach so that
di versi on becones a much nore viabl e option.

Recomendation 5
e« Allow for a nore conplete wage subsi dy program

The State of Oregon devel oped a program that engages the private
sector to provide training opportunities. In nost states, the
| ar gest enployer is the private sector so finding ways to include
it is critically inportant. The legislation [SB 293] asks for
aut hori zation to take the value of the food stanp benefits. The
state already has the ability to take the value of the cash
benefit and turn it into a wage subsidy. This asks for state
perm ssion to approach the federal food stanp programto do the
sane thing with the food stanp benefit, couple those benefits
together and use them to reinburse private sector enployers for
providing training opportunities for this clientele. The state
of Oregon found that approach was not only a very good avenue to
get clients with significant barriers to work, it also worked as
an econom ¢ stinulus because many small enployers would not have
had the capital to expand.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN asked if these changes are synchronized wth
what the federal government nay do.

M5. HOBACK said that Congress is just beginning to discuss
reaut hori zation so it is too early to tell. However, she believes
the changes in SB 293 wll conform very well to what she has
heard di scussed so far.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if the wage subsidy is designed for use by
the private sector only.

M5. HOBACK said that is how it was designed in the state of
Oregon but the bill only authorizes the division to use the val ue
of the food stanps for a wage subsidy program It does not speak
to the private or public sector.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN announced that SB 293 would be before the
commttee next Wednesday.

MR. JIM NORDLUND, Director of the Division of Public Assistance,
said he will coment on the bill next week. He added that he has
had a good working relationship with Ms. Hoback. The division
had been considering sone of the recomended changes for awhile.
The division has reservations about some of the provisions in the
bill but, overall it presents a good start.

SENATOR DAVI S t hanked Chairwoman G een for contracting with the
Institute for the report.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -21- February 13, 2002



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
CHAI RWOVAN GREEN adj our ned t he neeti ng.
#

SENATE HES COW TTEE -22- February 13, 2002



